
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

REGULAR TOWN 
COMMISSION 

 MEETING 

January 19, 2022 

AGENDA PACKET 

1



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AGENDA 3 
                    

CONSENT AGENDA 7 

A. DECEMBER 15, 2021 DRAFT MINUTES 8 
B. SITE PLAN FOR 419 AVENUE B 21  
C. SITE PLAN FOR 407 3RD AVENUE 55 

  

OLD BUSINESS 99 
A. S.E.A. PROJECT  - VISION STATEMENT UPDATE 

NEW BUSINESS 103 
A. PROCLAMATION: HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH –POSTPONED                       103 
B. CONSIDERATION OF TOWN CODE DEFINITION OF KITCHEN            106 
C. FINANCE RESOLUTION 2022-01               110 
D. FIRE DEPARTMENT REQUEST FOR TEMP DONATION                                 113  

STAFF REPORTS 114 

1. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 114 
2.  BUILDING DEPARTMENT REPORT                                                                                                                   115 
3.  PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 119 
4.  CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 120 
5.  POLICE DEPARTMENT REPORT 124 
6.   FIRE DEPARTMENT REPORT 132 
7.   FINANCE REPORT 136 

ACTION ITEMS 144 



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

JANUARY 19, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
AGENDA 

 
The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 

on Wednesday January 19, 2022 in the Community Center 
to address the items below 

 
Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton       

     Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The 
following sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further 
motion by the Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in 
proceedings of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a 
method for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the 
Town Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

 

 

 

3



1. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Hoover 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

4. Presentations 
 

 
5. Public Comments 

 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their 
name and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare 
their comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address 
the Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business not on the Agenda.   
 

6. Approval of the Agenda  
 

7. Consent Agenda   
A. Approval of December 15, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
B. Site Plan Approval for 419 Avenue B 
C. Site Plan Approval for 407 3rd Avenue 
 

8. Old Business  
 

A. Approval of tentative S.E.A. Project F/K/A Beautification Project Vision Statement 
– Town Manager Mascaro  
 

9. New Business 
 
A. Consideration of Proclamation to Recognize Human Trafficking Awareness 

Month – Vice Mayor Barton  
 

B. Consideration of updating the Town Code of Ordinances to include a 
Definition of Kitchen  - Town Manager Mascaro  

 
C. Consideration of Finance Resolution 2022-01 -Budget Amendment related to 

Transfer Expenditures within the General Fund – Finance Manager Kerr 
 
D. Consideration of allowing temporary structural donation to Fire Department 

for firefighter training purposes before demolition – Fire Chief Brown  
 

12. Staff Reports  
A. Town Attorney Report 
B. Town Manager Report  
C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports 

4



1. Building Department  
2. Public Works Department  
3. Code Enforcement  
4. Police Department  
5. Fire Department  
6. Finance Department  

 
13.    Town Commission Comments   

A. General Comments 
B. Review of Commission Action List  

 
14.   Adjournment 

5



6



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: Consent 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2022  

Subject: Approval of December 15, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes and (2) Site Plans    

Submitted By: Town Clerk 

Background Information:  

The site plan for both 419 Avenue B and 407 3rd Avenue were each approved 5-0 by the 
Planning and Zoning Board during its January 11, 2022 Meeting  

Recommendation: 

• Approval of December 15, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
• Approval of Site Plan for 419 Avenue B 
• Approval of Site Plan for 407 3rd Avenue 

.Attachments:   

• December 15, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes (Not attached) Will be provided 
Tuesday, 1/18/22) 

• Site Plan for 419 Avenue B 
• Site Plan Approval for 407 3rd Avenue  

 
 
 

7



Town of Melbourne Beach 
REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

DECEMBER 15, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 

 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 

 
Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 
1. Call to Order 

 
Mayor Hoover called the meeting to order at 6 p.m. 
 

2. Roll Call 
 
Town Clerk Torres conducted the roll call 
 

Commission Members Present 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 
Commissioner Sherrie Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members Present 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Public Works Director Tom Davis 
Fire Chief Gavin Brown 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Mayor Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  
 

4. Presentations 
 
A. Parks Board request to host a Young Entrepreneur’s Market in Ryckman 

Park 
 
Town Manager Mascaro announced that the Parks Board was unable to attend the 
meeting this evening. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie requested that the Town Attorney look into the legality of having 
an event involving money. In addition, she would like to have some sort of guideline 
when dealing with issues such as this. 
 
Mayor Hoover asked the Town Attorney to research how the event may affect 9-I. For 
example, he would like to know if there are any limits on charitable contributions and he 

9



wants to make sure the Parks Board has substantial information to present when they 
are able to attend.  

 
5. Public Comments 

 
Frank Thomas 
606 Atlantic Street 

 
Mr. Thomas noted that the Commission wasted the first 15 minutes talking about 
a group who was supposed to show up and did not.  Mr. Thomas then spoke 
about the New Year’s Day walk. It has been going on for many years and has 
always been successful rain or shine. It will take place at 10 a.m. on New Year’s 
Day. Bruce Morgan will be on hand to do the presentation.  
 
Commissioner Barton commented that it is a wonderful event and she has been 
on the walk many times and enjoyed it.  
 
 

Stan Budesa 
503 Magnolia Avenue 
 

Mr. Budesa wanted to discuss the zoning. Mayor Hoover said that will be 
discussed during the agenda item. He said he has been through many 
controversies in Town during his time as Vice Mayor. The room used to be 
packed. He was worried there would be adjustments to the code and wanted to 
make sure that everyone had chance to give their input. The lagoon is one of his 
main concerns, and people need to put out their barrels. When somebody applies 
for a pool permit he thinks the Town should send someone out a few days later 
and have code enforcement check it out.  
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Road 

 
Ms. Dennington wanted to know why the Code Board was inactivated.  
 
She said the idea of a special magistrate can be good because it can save the Town 
money – but the danger is that it is one person – who is not from the Town and if 
that person is not impartial that would cause a problem. 
 
Mayor Hoover said it was hard to find people to serve who would be making 
decisions that might affect their neighbors – in addition to the complexity of the 
code.  
 
Ms. Dennington said it sounds like the Commission didn’t like their decisions. 
Mayor Hoover said – that is not the case - and he had already answered the 
question.  
 

10



Town Attorney Repperger added a few additional comments explaining the 
rational, which involved streamlining the hearing to one person who is 
experienced and knowledgeable with the legal issues.  
 
 

6. Approval of the Agenda  
Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the agenda; Commissioner Runte 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

 
7. Consent Agenda   

A. Approval of November 17, 2021 RTCM Draft Minutes  
 
An edited version of the minutes was presented with three minor changes.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve Item the November 19, 2021 draft 
minutes with the changes indicated; Commissioner Runte seconded; 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 

B. Site Plan Approval for 402 Riverview Lane 
 

Commissioner Runte recused himself from voting on site plan approval because he is 
the owner of the property.   

Commissioner Quarrie moved to approve the site plan approval for 402 
Riverview Lane; Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0.  
 

8. Old Business  
A. Consideration of alternatives for Town Pier lighting –PWD Davis 

 
Public Works Director Davis presented some options for lights on the pier. He added that 
he feels a significant amount of what they thought was vandalism to the pier – may be 
fishermen and is accidental.   
 
Commissioner Runte asked if the quote includes install. Public Works Director Davis said 
no. The Town would purchase the lights and install them.  
 
Some discussion took place on the item including the use of different metals, weather 
resistance, strength, connectors, direction of light, and turtle safety. Public Works 
Director Davis said a box connector is the recommendation.   
 
After Commissioner Runte asked about revenue from parking – Town Manager Mascaro 
said this particular project was not budgeted into that revenue fund. The projects are 
allocated – and it can be done - but she would need to move a few things around.  
 

11



Mayor Hoover said they would have a future discussion related to where to find the funds 
in the budget before making a decision.  
 
There are 62 fixtures in all – said PWD Davis.  
 
Public Comment 
 

Neil Tompkins 
Harbor East 

 
Mr. Tompkins suggested stainless, bronze or brass, and added that LED drivers do not do 
so well.  
 

Stane Budesa 
503 Magnolia Avenue 

 
Mr. Budesa asked if there is a limit to how close the cast netters can get to the lagoon.  
 
Mayor Hoover is interested in volt lighting and getting warranty info and he suggested 
they table the item until January.  All agreed.  
 

 
9. New Business 

A. Discuss the possibility of allowing changes in Zone 6B to allow for mixed use 
properties. Consider using elements from 7A-35 and 7A-38 to incorporate into 
a mixed use Zone 6B – Town Manager Mascaro 

 
Town Manager said there has been a lot of discussion recently about beautification and 
what the Town and its residents are looking for. She said they are not looking to change 
the identity of Town - but feel the Town could use a little facelift. She went on to say the 
Town is not blighted but there have been vacant lots and properties lining Ocean Avenue 
for some time. She wanted to look at how the Town can help people expand their business 
and provide opportunities – one thing suggested was to change the zoning to allow 
residential or mixed use in that zone. She clarified some of the issues.  
 
She discussed the use of exceptions as opposed to zoning changes and the options 
available. She also suggested the Commission could elect to change the uses without 
changing the zoning or applying for a special exception.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro suggested they first talk about what their vision is for the East 
side of Ocean Avenue. She also clarified that the North side and South side do not have to 
be the same – they can be zoned or restricted differently.  
 
Mayor Hoover thanked the Town Manager for the great summary. He wanted to clarify 
that as opposed to comments some people have made on social medial insinuating they 
are trying to make some “crazy” moves – their actual intent is to start what will be a 
lengthy process among the Commission and with the residents and no decisions will be 

12



made today. Retaining the character and charm of the community is of the utmost 
importance to everyone.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said her vision was to maintain the height and setbacks. The tricky 
part about changing 8B is the setbacks. She does not feel comfortable changing the 
setbacks or with any change in heights. She believes they should stay at 28.  
 
Mayor Hoover said he agreed and asked how the rest of the Commission felt.  
 
Everyone agreed to not change heights.  
 
As for setbacks, Commissioner Runte said setbacks are a more loaded issue and would 
need further consideration.  
 
Commissioner Runte said walking around Town there are a lot of buildings that have not 
been upgraded or maintained in years. He said the Town has one street and there are 
properties that have been sitting for so long – instead of being a vibrant business area like 
Indialantic’s 5th Avenue. He suggested they look at how we can help those business that 
want to help themselves and find a way to motivate them. He said we can all agree that 
the Town could use a facelift and we have no tax base from businesses. It’s a much larger 
conversation. It’s important to remain quaint but it’s also important not let things get into 
disrepair.  
 
Mayor Hoover said he agreed with Commissioner Runte’s points. He asked if they could 
agree to focus on 6B now and not the whole of Ocean Avenue.  
 
It was agreed that was a good approach.  
 
Vice Mayor Barton said her opinion was to bring more of a cohesive look, a more attractive 
appearance and more diversity in shop owners and businesses. As a Town, she would like 
to give more inspiration and direction to shop owners who may have become complacent. 
She wanted to establish a vision so residents could be a little more proud of the Town and 
see it look a little better and offer more opportunity and selection. The intention is not to 
make any major changes – just to make it better in an incremental way. As earlier 
expressed, she said we always take direction and opinions from the Town. Personally she 
would like to see a rendering of some sort in order to offer a visual of the changes they are 
considering. It helps people to envision the project better.  
 
Commissioner Walker said she echoes what everyone else said. She is in agreement and 
loves the idea.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie asked if we only do a mixed use as a special exception in 6B what 
would that application look like. Would we ask the applicant for a rendering of what they 
wish to do? They are all so unique. She feels we should have each shop owner tell us what 
they want to do – and then we can approve of it – or not.  
 

13



Town Attorney Repperger said he is not a planner and can’t advise on certain areas. He 
noted that the Commission was focused on the technical aspects and are ahead of where 
they should be in discussion. It should be more conceptual – for example, what do you 
want to see in that zoning classification. If you get a conceptual view of what you want to 
see – then the technical aspects can be worked out later.  
 
Commissioner Runte asked if Commissioner Quarrie was suggesting that they use special 
exception instead of zoning use change because all properties are a little different.  
 
She said yes – it would take the burden off us – instead of us telling them how it has to 
look – they bring it to us and it goes through a process.  
 
Mayor Hoover said it will take a few years to propose and implement changes. It will give 
future Commissions the ability to exercise some oversite based on their concept of what 
the community needs and what residents want.  
 
Commissioner Runte said he agrees with Commissioner Quarrie – it’s a great idea and 
would alleviate concerns of any special interest. Incremental review would be good. We 
have one street – we want to make sure it has the best use possible. We can provide a 
buffet of options within those special exceptions.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said it gives applicants the ability to be creative.  
 
She said the hot buttons in the community are drive-thru businesses and height. She went 
on to say they have mixed use – Savers Drug Mart is mixed use and she didn’t know how 
they did that.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said it is commercial – and allowed to have second story – but 
what isn’t allowed is residential. She believes they would have to do some research on the 
lot sizes. If it’s going to be a minimum lot area – she still feels they need the setbacks in 
place.  
 
Commissioner Runte said if we don’t do something – it could be like Indialantic – Surf 
Style is tearing down their current building and building a bigger Surf Style – because the 
code is outdated and there is no room for anyone to do anything creative in that area 
including a brewery, a restaurant, a boutique hotel, etc. He feels that’s what could happen 
in Melbourne Beach if we don’t make some changes to our code here.  
 
Mayor Hoover asked what would need to happen to allow roof-top dining 
Town Manager Mascaro said nothing prohibits it but no one has ever done it – she added 
that parking could be an issue depending on the size.  
 
Mayor Hoover said he spoke with a business owner who has outdoor seating in front of a 
restaurant that goes almost up to the sidewalk and that owner wants to have a covered 
space over the seating are – and he was told that is prohibited.  
 

14



Commissioner Quarrie said she would think that would be considered a permanent 
structure on a setback. She questioned what the definition of a covered seating area 
outside is related to open air covered space vs. enclosed covered space. 
 
Commissioner Walker asked why Dijon Pepaj has an aluminum cover in front of his 
restaurant.  
 
Some further discussion took place.  
 
Town Manager said you can allow it in 6B. 
 
Commissioner Quarrie suggested a definition involving open air. What is allowable in 
open air? What is the use? Retail, restaurant, gardening, etc.  
 
Mayor Hoover asked what the best way to work it would be – it was a question best made 
to the Town Planner. The Town Manager will take the suggestions back to the Town 
Planner to get some answers.  
 
Commissioner Walker said open air markets are nice and good for the community.  
 
Commissioner Runte said if COVID continues this would be a tool to help businesses 
survive.  
 
Public Comment 
 

Frank Thomas 
606 Atlantic Street 

 
Mr. Thomas has lived in Town since 1962. He acknowledged the Commission was very 
conscientious. He said the subject has been talked about in the past. We have done a lot 
of good things in the past – the Ryckman House, the post office. He wanted to invite them 
to the history center where there is a model of what Ocean Avenue looked like in the past 
when there was a train  
 

Ali Dennington 
413 Surf Road 

 
Ms. Dennington asked if the Commission could give people a ballpark of how much time 
the project will take to plan.  She said a survey or map from the planner would help. 
She advised they listen to the public and have discussions on social media. 
 
She said a special exception is great idea instead of changing the zoning and added that 
she would like to have more restaurants and businesses but is just concerned with 
allowing a restaurant on top. She also did not feel comfortable with balconies.  
 

Frank Kofflin 
406 1st Avenue 

15



 
Mr. Kofflin asked that the Commission consider accessibility. People have to have places 
to park. He felt the residential combo stuff is a good idea.  As long as you restrict what 
they can do with residential – such a vacation rentals.  
 
Commissioner Runte said he wanted to address something incorrect Ms. Dennington said 
on the social media site NextDoor. He felt her comments were malicious and disparaging 
(something he said she does a lot) and instead of reaching out directly to the Commission 
members, she posted her thoughts on social media.  
 
He then proceeded to read from her post.  
 
“So many more people on the roads so we will probably need to widen the roads, so then 
the town might implement eminent domain and start taking people’s property subject 
to just compensation…” 
 
Commissioner Runte said Ms. Dennington is the champion of disparaging, inappropriate, 
malicious comments on social media – and he suggested she change her approach – and 
instead sent meaningful emails to the Commission to address her issues.   
 

Neil Tompkins 
2004 Neptune Drive 

 
Mr. Tompkins said the reason he resigned from the BOA is that it is a frustrating process. 
There is the cosmetic, architectural part and there is the use and zoning part. You all 
brought valid issues and we just need to consolidate them as what our goals are.  
 

Stan Budesa 
503 Magnolia Avenue 

 
Mr. Budesa said he doesn’t know how the Commission puts up with social media stuff and 
that’s why he can’t be on the Commission. 
 
Mayor Hoover said as we move forward with the discussion and present it to the 
community, they could collect data on properties in 6B – including the last renovation, so 
we can have the data and research to provide to residents and businesses. It’s a useful tool 
to communicate why we are proceeding with this.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said people get nervous – and asked what ding bat came up with 
that comment about heights. We should be defining special exception and what it looks 
like – and then tackle parking.  
 
Mayor Hoover said we are not disagreeing.  
 
Commissioner Runte said if you have an extreme parking requirement you will never have 
a walkable, bike community.  
 

16



Town Manager Mascaro said before we can determine that – because it is determined by 
the type of use – if we have only single family residential – that drives your parking – a 
two-story commercial building means something else.  
 
She went on to say that before you can tackle parking you must decide what kind of 
properties you are going to allow and then how manage parking. 
 
Mayor Hoover said getting into a parking discussion too soon will take away from the 
flexibility for businesses. He said he believes the focus should be on making those 
businesses more accessible and allowing the opportunity for people to take their bike or 
golf cart over to safely have pizza or ice cream. People want to be out in the community – 
but businesses in Town are harder to access – A1A can be harrowing, we need bike racks, 
etc. Moving forward the consideration we need to make are what restrictions do we want 
to impose on residential and maybe have conversations with residents. Do we have ability 
to restrict vacation rentals, etc.?  
 
Immediate next step is look at how do we make those changes with feedback from the 
Town Planner. He went on to say that from a timeline perspective – the shortest possible 
timeline would be January after getting feedback from the Town Planner – and if they go 
forward – we would direct the Town Attorney to draft language – and that may occur in 
a month –with a first reading in February and then in March, a second reading at which 
point we could potentially approve it. So, the earliest timeframe to complete this wouldn’t 
be before April 2022.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie asked the Town to put the official zoning map online.  
 
The Town Manager said in regard to Dix Hite – they will get back with her and she will 
have more information in January.  
 
Commissioner Runte thanked the Town Manager for providing a great overview that 
guided the conversation - and he acknowledged all the great input from his fellow 
Commissioners.  
 
The Mayor suggested a workshop in February to discuss the issue more and canceled the 
January workshop.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

11. Staff Reports  
A. Town Attorney Report  
B. Town Manager Report  

 
Town Manager Mascaro said there are several long-standing Town Managers who are 
leaving their posts. She also advised the Commission that the Parks Board has three 

17



events planned and are doing great. She said the tree lighting feedback was very positive 
and they are looking to make it even bigger and better next year and perhaps they will 
add a New Year’s Eve family event.  
 

C. Town Clerk Report  
D. Departmental Reports 

1. Building Department  
 
New building official will take on the position. He will work all three days and will know 
our code, drive our streets. Etc. New building software is also being implemented.  
 
Commissioner Runte said in relation to pools – that water is ground water – it is not 
chemical water.  
 
Commissioner Quarrie said that water dilutes the lagoon and effects the balance and 
causes algae. Water being pumped out should be put in a water tank.  
 
Mayor Hoover said the requirement is that you don’t have it on the curb so it can 
dissipate into the ground.  
 
Commissioner Runte said perhaps time limitations should be considered.  
 

• The Commission added an Action Item related to the pool installation 
process and limiting the duration to 60-90 days.  

 
2. Public Works Department  

  
In his update PWD Davis said:  

- The slab for the new building will be poured next Tuesday 
- He thanked Vice Mayor Barton for the beautiful poinsettias at Exxon  
- He will investigate solar lights to light up sign and flowers 
- The tennis court lights are up and running for under $13,000 and it looks 

great. Signs are going up Thursday. Dumpster gates are replaced.  
- On Orange and Ash there is still an issue with the water level still and he is 

convinced it is an underground well but he has not found someone yet to 
confirm it. Working with Town engineer on that.  

- He asked the Commission if they would be open to a nice hard wood 
paneling on the dais and better countertop - All agreed it could use an 
update. 

Mayor Hoover asked if the Oaks on Oak have a watering plan.  

Fire Chief Brown said the Department can help. Mayor Hoover asked if they can create a 
schedule for watering – weekly would suffice – and said the root base should be 
replaced and made larger with composted soil.  

18



3. Code Enforcement  
 

4. Police Department  
 
 
FTO Zachary Martin and Officer Luis Tejeda have been selected as the Officers of the 
Year.  
 
Commissioner Runte said that he experienced another theft in his truck and wanted to 
share a reminder to be careful. He said they hit at least 25 cars.  
 
It was noted that Mayor Hoover won the Turkey Trot. 
 

5. Fire Department  
 
Town Manager Mascaro noted that Chief Brown received his State Fire Instructors 
Certification. The Commission said Chief Brown was doing a great job. 
 

6. Finance Department  
 
Town Manager Mascaro noted that Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr has been out on 
leave but she is now back on a part-time schedule.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said she checked all areas and all departments are within what 
was allowed except equipment maintenance – law enforcement was coded incorrectly 
and will be adjusted. Everyone managing money well. 
 
Commissioner Runte moved to approve the November Finance Report, 
Commissioner Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0.  

 
12.    Town Commission Comments   

A. General Comments 
 
Vice Mayor Barton reported on a trip she recently took to Tallahassee.  
 
Through the Space Coast League of Cities, the advocacy group for legislation, Vice 
Mayor Barton took a trip to the State Building in Tallahassee - traveling with two 
Satellite Beach City officials – City Manager Courtney Barker and Councilwoman Mindy 
Gibson. They had seven appointments with Senators and House Representatives – and 
met with two Committee Chair People and their staff and attended two sessions.  
 
She noted that the bills of importance to us as a small town include Senate Bill 620 –
which is related to the idea that any kind of Ordinance change the municipality makes 
can result in being sued by a business who feels they are adversely effected.  She hopes it 
gets defeated because it is written very broadly and there not enough checks and 
balances. The other Bill of note is Senate Bill 280 – which has to do with the process of 

19



sea grass regulation and she felt it was not written well – good points were made but she 
hopes this bill won’t go as written either.  
 
One personal concern, Vice Mayor Barton noted is House Bill 531 presented By Randy 
Fine which suggest a party designation on the ballot in our small towns. Vice Mayor 
Barton said she disagreed and did not think it was necessary because we are not into 
whole political arena as they are at the larger level – we are just trying to run our Town.  
 
She also noted there may be more required financial reporting. 
 
In all, Vice Mayor Barton said it was a jam-packed, good trip and wanted to note that all 
her expenses for the trip were paid for by the Space Coast League of Cities – not by the 
Town.  
 

B. Review of Commission Action List  
 

Updates 
- Ocean Ave Beautification – update January with Dix Height  
- Crosswalks – Update January  
- Traffic Stanchions – June  2022 update 

Newly Added Action Items 
- Golf cart parking and bike rack installation – January 2022 
- Investigate pool installation – January 2022 

Closed Action Items 
- Stop sign placement – will be complete this week (Thursday) – closed 

 
Mayor Hoover wanted to note that that Town does not make a profit on parking tickets 
– in fact – he said it costs the Town money with officer time, etc. Towns can’t make a 
profit and any revenue goes to the parks.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said there are new charging companies coming out and 
installing their own equipment so there may soon be better deals in the arena. She 
advised it was a good idea to wait and see what incentives there may be to install or pay 
for them. She also noted that rapid charge is 3-4 times the cost.  
 
PWD Davis said a new parking kiosk has been ordered. 

 
13.     Adjournment 
 
Commissioner Runte moved to adjourn; Commissioner Walker seconded; 
Motion carried 5-0.  

Meeting adjourned at 9 p.m. 

 

 

20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



Town Commission Meeting    
 

Section:   Old Business  

Meeting Date:  January 19, 2022 

Subject:  S.E.A. Project F/K/A Beautification Project 

From:   Town Manager Mascaro 

 

Background Information:   

After consideration of the report provided by Dix Height, The Commission has decided to 
better define its vision of the Beautification Project to reflect more specific objectives and 
to better define the process in order execute on its vision.   

Vision Statement: 
 

  The Purpose of This Project is To Sustain the Town’s   
   Character While Addressing its Needs. 
 

 Thank you to Neal Tompkins for developing our Vision statement. 
 

1. Change the name to the S.E.A. which is an acronym for  

   Safety & Successful,  

   Environmental & Ecological, 

    Attractive & Accessible.  

Thank you to Ali Dennington for the S.E.A. acronym. 

2. Work with Neal Thompkins to develop a process to move the project forward in 
a logical manner. 

3. Contact additional Architectural Planning and Design firms to obtain vision 
statements 

99



  a) Perry Becker Design 
  b) Drummond Carpenter, PLCC (Donald Carpenter) 
  c) Mead & Hunt 
 
4. Develop RFP for Design Concepts 
 
5. Review and refine with all stakeholders: residents, business, organizations and   
 boards. 
6. Create plan, budget and schedule for implementations 
 
Of course there will be many other considerations through-out the process.  This 
agenda is to define the Vision of the project and some of the objectives.  
 
A very big Thank You to Neal Tompkins for volunteering to develop a course of action to 
follow and to work with me and the Commission on bringing our goals to fruition. 
 
  

 

. 

 Recommendation:.  

1. Consider the approval of the Vision Statement. 
2. Consider the approval of the project name S.E.A. 
3. Agree to have TM contact the Architectural Planning and Design firms listed.   
4. Consider the approval of the steps to move forward: #4, 5, 6. 

 
 
 
Attachments:  

• Outline authored by Neal Thompkins 

100



VISION STATEMENT  
OCEAN AVENUE CORRIDOR  

 
SUSTAINING ITS CHARACTER WHILE ADDRESSING ITS NEEDS 

 

Priorities (Safety, Environment and Accessibility - S.E.A.)  
• From ocean to river, a social  gathering corridor for family and friends  
• A pedestrian friendly streetscape that safely accommodates pass through traffic  
• Improve storm water management  
• Align with building codes, zoning and DOT constraints 
• Encourage and embrace the activities, businesses and organizations that enhance our lives 

Steps 
• Vision statement 
• RFP for design concepts  
• Review and refine with all stakeholders: residents, businesses, organizations, and boards 
• Create plan, budget and schedule for implementation 

 
RFP process 

• Select Point person to  interface with outside resources 
• Curate all current inputs of wants, needs and limitations  
• Engage with all stakeholders  
• Identify funding sources, budgetary planning and timeline expectations 
• Try to anticipate and leverage 3rd party lagoon and beach enhancement projects  
• Require continued design support during any future construction 
• Competitive bid process and defined deliverables 

Considerations for RFP 
• Zoning and outstanding issues on ocean avenue corridor, beach and lagoon needs 
• List of all businesses, buildings, organizations and residents in corridor 
• Ocean park parking lot and storm water issues 
• Parking requirements throughout corridor 
• DOT right of way considerations 
• Safety and Pedestrian friendly  
• Thematic elements for cosmetics 
• Parking accommodations for cars, golf carts, scooters and bikes 
• In flow for the future 
• Funding 
• Other known challenges and issues 

 

101



102



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2022 

Subject:  Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month January  
   2022 

Submitted By: Vice Mayor Barton 

Background Information:  

January 2022 has been designated as National Human Trafficking Awareness and 
 Prevention Month by the Federal Government. This proclamation serves to inspire 
education and awareness.   

 
Recommendation: 

• Approve Proclamation establishing January 2022 as Human Trafficking 
Awareness Month in the Town of Melbourne Beach  

. 

Attachments:   

• Proclamation for Human Trafficking Awareness Month January 2022  
 
 

103



HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH 
 January 2021  
 
IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED BY THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE 
BEACH, BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 
 

WHEREAS, January 2022 has been designated as National Human Trafficking 
Awareness and Prevention Month by the Federal Government; and 

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking is the illegal trade in human beings, a public health 

and humanitarian issue, a form of modern-day slavery and a crime against humanity 
that violates the most basic human rights and deprives victims of their freedom, and 
 

WHEREAS, human trafficking is the recruitment, harboring, transporting, 
providing, or obtaining of a person for the purpose of a commercial sex act, labor or 
services induced by force, fraud, or coercion, or in which the person induced to perform 
such act has not attained 18 years of age, and 

 
WHEREAS, there are three main forms of trafficking: sex trafficking, labor 

trafficking and organ trafficking.  Most awareness and information focuses on the first 
two, but all three exist, and 
 

WHEREAS, over 45 million people are being trafficked worldwide and the United 
States is one of the worst countries globally with an estimated 199,000 incidents 
occurring each year, and 

 
WHEREAS, Florida ranks third in the United States for human trafficking cases 

reported to the National Human Trafficking Resource Center, with the Central Region 
having the highest number of cases reported to FDCF, as human traffickers regard 
Florida as one of the most attractive destination and transit points for their victims, and 

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking has increased exponentially as the fastest growing 

and third largest international criminal enterprise behind illegal drugs and arms trades, 
generating over $150 billion dollars, specifically involving CSAM, pornography and 
online exploitation and often involves family members or those personally known to the 
victim, and  

 
WHEREAS, human trafficking community awareness initiatives, interventions 

and education of parents and caregivers are critical to the fabric of our society as the 
average age of recruitment into trafficking is 12-14 years of age and half of all trafficking 
victims are children, and 

 
WHEREAS, we commit ourselves to eradicating the evil of enslavement. Human 

trafficking is a modern form of the oldest and most barbaric type of exploitation and we 
proclaim it has no place in the world, our great nation, or our Town; and 

 
WHEREAS, more awareness and education are crucial to eradicating human 

trafficking in our communities, state, and nation; and 
 

WHEREAS, ANEW Life International (ANEW) is a local faith-based not-for-profit 
organization serving as a trusted partner to raise awareness, reduce vulnerability and 
provide resources and services to victims, survivors and our community, and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Wyatt Hoover, Mayor of the Town of Melbourne Beach, 
by virtue of the authority of said office, do hereby proclaim the month of January 2022 
as: 
 

HUMAN TRAFFICKING AWARENESS MONTH 
  
in the Town of Melbourne Beach, Florida, and urge all citizens to protect the vulnerable 
and end human trafficking through continued prevention, prosecution, education, and 
awareness and to send a strong message to perpetrators that Florida is a zero-tolerance 
state for all forms of human trafficking and that we are committed to protecting victims’ 
rights and restoring their dignity and freedom. 
 

 

104



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of 
the Town of Melbourne Beach to be affixed this Nineteenth day of January, Two 
Thousand Twenty-two. 
 
 
                                                            
Wyatt Hoover, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
                                                         
Jennifer Torres, TOWN CLERK 

 
 

105



   Regular Town Commission Meeting    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  January 19, 2022 

Subject:  Update Code of Ordinance’s to include a Definition of Kitchen  
    

Submitted By:  Town Manager Mascaro 

 

Background Information:   

The Planning & Zoning Board wanted to define the word KITCHEN in the Town Code of 
Ordinance’s.  The Board felt providing a definition of the word kitchen, would provide a 
tool for Code Enforcement to bring an action against a homeowner who has 2 kitchens.  
A single family dwelling with 2 kitchens would be considered multifamily, which isn’t a 
permitted use under the Code. P&Z also felt having a definition of kitchen would 
discourage single family dwellings from becoming multifamily dwellings for the purpose 
of having a rental unit. 

. 

 Recommendation: 1.Consider the definition of Kitchen provided by the Planning &  
     Zoning Board.   

     2. Consider including the definition of kitchen in the Town’s Code of  

      Ordinances. 

 
Attachments:  

• P&Z draft minutes 

106



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

PLANNING & ZONING BOARD MEETING 
TUESDAY JANUARY 11, 2022 @ 6:30pm 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 
Board Members: 
Chair David Campbell 
Member Kurt Belsten       
Member April Evans     
Member Douglas Hilmes  
Member Daniel Gonzalez 
 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 

 

Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The following sections 
of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further motion by the Commission: Changes 
to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in proceedings of the 
board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT: In order 
to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the proceedings. It will be your 
responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method for recording the proceedings verbatim 
as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing special 
accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town Clerk at (321) 
724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

107



1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Campbell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Town Clerk Torres conducted the roll call 
 

Present:     
Chairman Campbell    
Vice Chairperson Belsten 
Member Hilmes    
Member Evans 
Member Gonzalez 
 
Staff Present: 
Town Manager Mascaro 
Town Attorney Cliff Repperger 
Town Planner Corey O’Gorman 
Town Clerk Jennifer Torres 

  Building Department Beth Crowell 
 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
- December 7, 2021 Draft Minutes 

 
Member Evans asked about the definition of kitchen and queried as to whether we 
kept microwave in the definition. The Board agreed to remove the strike-through over 
“or other related device for cooking” and keep it as part of the definition. Therefore the 
definition will read: 
 

Kitchen means any indoor room or area containing all of the following 
equipment,: Sink and/or other device for dish washing, stove or other device 
for cooking, refrigerator or other device for cool storage of food, cabinets 
and/or shelves for storage of equipment. 
 

Vice Chair Belsten moved to approve the December 7, 2022 draft minutes 
with correction; Member Evans seconded; Motion carried 5-0.  

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Site Plan Approval for 419 Avenue B 

 
Chair Campbell said the plan shows a 6-foot fence going past the front building line – 
which they do not allow. In addition proposed height is different.  
 
Building Assistant Crowell explained the addition in height was a technical issue.  
 
Member Hilmes said the fence in question appears to already exist. The owner, who 
was present, acknowledged that is the case.  

108



 
Building Assistant Crowell said the fence is actually the neighbors backyard fence.  

 
Member Hilmes moved to approve the site plan for 419 Avenue B; 
Member Evans seconded; Motion carried 5-0.  
 

B. Site Plan Approval for 407 3rd Avenue   
 

Member Gonzalez moved to approve the site plan at 407 3rd Avenue; 
Member Evans seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
6. OLD BUSINESS 

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Please limit comments to items that are not on the agenda 
 

8. REPORTS: TOWN MANAGER AND TOWN ATTORNEY 
 

9. ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA FOR FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
Member Hilmes asked about the definition of a pool. He said the Town does not 
seem to have setbacks for spas. He mentioned a neighbor whose spa is about 2-
feet away from neighboring fence and asked the board if they should look at 
defining the setbacks for a spa.  
 
Town Manager Mascaro said permits are not required because they are not a 
permanent structure.  
 
Chairman Campbell said the board should change the language to include pool, 
spa, and hot tub. Exception is a kiddie pool that can be picked up and moved.  
He asked the Town Manager to add this to their list of definitions.  
 
Some discussion related to permitting and setbacks ensued.  
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Vice Chair Belsten moved to adjourn the meeting; Member Evans 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 

109



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda    
 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  January 19, 2022  

Subject: Resolution 2022-01 – Budget Amendment. Transfer Expenditures 
within the General Fund.  

 

Submitted By:  Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

 

Background Information 
 
Transfer funds within the General Fund to cover unexpected cost to replace the tennis court 
lights. 

. 
 
According to Town Code of Ordinances, 15-6 BUDGET AMENDMENTS AUTHORIZED at any 
time in any budget year, the Town Commission may amend the adopted budget or transfer any 
unencumbered balance, or portion thereof, from one fund, office, department or agency to 
another by approval of a resolution providing for same.  
  
Resolution 2022-01 complies with the ordinance. 
    
Recommendation:   

Motion to approve Resolution 2022-01 

Attachments:  

• Resolution 2022-01 

110



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, BREVARD 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR 2021-2022; AMENDING RESOLUTION NO 2021-17; AMENDING 
THE EXPENDITURE BUDGET FOR THE GENERAL FUND; 
ESTABLISHING AUTHORITY FOR THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
IMPLEMENT THE BUDGET; AND PROVIDING FOR ADOPTION. 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission adopted the Budget for the Town of Melbourne Beach for 
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022 by Resolution No 2021-
17; and 

WHEREAS, this Resolution amends Resolution No. 2021-17 covering the period October 1, 2021 
to September 30, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach has conducted the requisite 
public hearing(s) on this resolution as required by Section 166.241, Florida Statutes and Section 
15-6, Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne 
Beach, Florida, as follows: 

Section 1. That the 2021-2022 Town Budget for the General Fund and Resolution No 2022-01 
adopting the aforesaid amended budget, is hereby amended with the following amendments.  
Not all funds or accounts are depicted. Funds, accounts, and departmental budgets or 
appropriations not shown are not amended.  The overall budget bottom is not increased.  

#1. Transfer Funds within the General Fund (001):  

Transfer $13,437.20 from Dept. 19 (General) Line item: 001-19-510.49.98 (Contingency) to 
Dept. 72 (Parks) Line item: 001-72-570.64.01(Capital Projects) to cover the cost to replace the 
tennis court lights.  
 

Section 2. That the amount shown in Section 1. of the Resolution is hereby appropriated out 
of the treasury of the Town and any revenue accruing to the Town available for said purposes 
of the Town’s budgetary accounts. 

Section 3. That the Town Manager is hereby authorized and directed to proceed with the 
implementation of the service programs and projects provided for in the budget. Such 
implementation is to be consistent with the provisions of the Town Code of Ordinances and 
policies established by the Mayor and Town Commission. 

Section 4. That the appropriations and authorizations provided in this resolution are hereby 
made effective as of January 19, 2022. 

 
 
 

111



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Town Commission of the Town of Melbourne Beach, Brevard 
County, Florida, at its regular meeting this 19th day of January, 2022. 
 
 
       TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, 
       FLORIDA, a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
       By: ________________________________ 
        Wyatt R. Hoover, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Jennifer Torres 
Town Clerk 

112



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda Item    
Section: New Business 

Meeting Date: January 19, 2022 

Subject:   Temporary structural donation to Fire Department for firefighter  
   training purposes before demolition. 

Submitted By: Fire Chief Gavin Brown 

Background Information:  

1. Donated structures provide an invaluable training opportunity for our volunteer 
firefighters to practice real world skills and scenarios that are hard to simulate with 
training props. It also provides us the opportunity to work with other surrounding 
agencies for mutual aid training. 

2. A letter included in the demolition permit packet would help educate residents planning 
a demolition on the benefits of temporarily donating the structure to the Fire Department 
for training. 

3. The cost of lumber and supplies needed to operate the roof prop borrowed from Indian 
Harbor Beach is nearly $600. By using the Fire Department’s training budget to cover the 
demolition permit fee ($75) it would provide the Fire Department with greater training 
opportunities at an overall cost savings to the Town compared to using training props. 

Recommendation: 

1) Request approval to include a 1 page letter in the demolition permit packet soliciting 
the request for temporary structural donation to the Fire Department for purposes of 
firefighter training before demolition occurs. 

2) Request approval to allow the Fire Department to use training budget to cover the 
$75 demolition permit fee as an incentive for property owners to donate structure before 
demolition. 

. 

Attachments:  None 

 

113



1. 1989 parking permits issued as of 1/14/2022

2. The current parking meter revenues since March 2021-116,160.25.

3. Staff spent two days with BS&A on data confirmation for finance, code, vacation rentals, and
building. The new software will be an amazing step forward in our ability to coordinate
revenues and expenses, tie Town financial records to the Florida Department of Finance,
record assets and inventory at time of receipt.  The Building Department will have a
comprehensive history of   permits, variances, code enforcement, P&Z recommendations,
fire inspections, and invoices tied to each property by address.  The software will
automatically issue letters, BTR’s, approvals, denials, code enforcement violations and
vacation rental certificates.

4. The recommended changes to the Comprehensive Plan have been sent to the State for
approval.  The Comprehensive Plan will come before the Commission in February for
approval and to hear the first reading of the 5 Year Capital Improvement Plan by Ordinance
as required by the State.

5. Attended P&Z meeting- 2 site plans approved.
6. Park Board held a Star Gazing event on January 6th, which was attended by @ 50 people.  A

request has been made to have this same event again in September.
7. Attended Commission workshop to discuss Dix Hite proposal.
8. Met with Neal Thompkins to discuss structure and process on how to move forward with the

S.E.A. project
9. New Year’s Day Walking Tour led by Frank Thomas and Bruce Morgan was very well

attended.
10. The Town will provide a better sound system for next year’s walk as the current system did

not allow everyone to clearly hear what was being said.
11. Detective-Corporal Sadler received a special recognition from Chief Griswold for locating 

the  driver and vehicle that fled the scene of the fatal hit and run of on /1/4/2022 in Juan 
Ponce De Leon parking lot.  

12. The Police Department welcomed Leon Bennett as their newest Officer, who replaces Officer
Chris Smith.

13. Public Works employee, Joe Matthews is now working Wednesday through Sunday.  Joe will
manage the trash in the parks and crossovers on the weekends in addition to his regular
duties.

Town Manager Report

114



Building Department Report  

December 2021 

• 33 permits issued
• Construction Value of the 33 permits totaled $847,076.00
• Total Permit fees $9,085.80
• 103 inspections completed
• 48 plans reviewed
• 2 Site Plan review for P&Z
• 2 BTR reviews
• 6 Vacation Rental inspections
• 1 New homes

115



Permit Permit Issue Company Address

MB21_447 SCREEN ENCLOSURE, INSTALL

12/28/2021 Tripod  Aluminum Inc. 307 AVENUE B

MB21_574 WINDOWS/DOORS/GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE

12/20/2021 INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS CONSTRUCTION INC 317 AVENUE A

MB21_582 POOL RESURFACE

12/8/2021 POOL DOCTOR  OF BREVARD INC 607 SHANNON AVE

MB21_587 WINDOWS AND DOORS, REPLACE
12/2/2021 510 BANYAN WAY

MB21_588 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY REPLACE

12/21/2021 Surfside Pavers Inc. 208 ASH AVE

MB21_609 PAVERS, WALKWAY
12/9/2021 ALLIANCE PAVERS 309 SURF RD

MB21_611 NEW INGROUND POOL

12/1/2021 Space Coast Shotcrete Inc 307 SUNSET BLVD

MB21_615 PAVERS, DRIVEWAY/WALKWAY

12/1/2021 Dave Nielsen LLC 606 SHANNON AVE

MB21_616 PLUMBING, REPLACE

12/20/2021 Drain Mechanics LLC 512 MAGNOLIA AVE

MB21_618 SHED

12/30/2021 303 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_619 POOL, RESURFACE

12/8/2021 POOL DOCTOR  OF BREVARD INC 204 DOGWOOD AVE

MB21_620 SEAWALL

12/21/2021 Shoreline Marine Contractors LLC 402 RIVER VIEW LN

116



MB21_622 NEW POOL
12/8/2021 Space Coast Shotcrete Inc 304 FIRST AVE

MB21_625 REROOF

12/10/2021 Spilker Roofing & Sheet Metal 207 DOGWOOD AVE

MB21_626 TEMPORARY POWER POLE

12/9/2021 PETES ELECTRIC LLC 402 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_628 FENCE AND GATE, REPLACE

12/10/2021 U S CURB APPEAL 300 THIRD AVE

MB21_629 POOL RESURFACE

12/13/2021 POOL RENO CREW LLC 502 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_631 HVAC, REPLACE

12/9/2021 CLIMATE EXPERTS, INC 507 HARLAND AVE

MB21_632 POOL RESURFACE

12/10/2021 All Star Pools of Brevard Inc 2208 ROSEWOOD DR

MB21_634 PAVERS

12/15/2021 319 THIRD AVE

MB21_637 HVAC, REPLACE

12/20/2021 Ocean Air and Heat Inc 536 SUNSET BLVD

MB21_638 ELECTRIC, OVERHEAD TO UNDERGROUND

12/15/2021 515 MAGNOLIA AVE

MB21_639 WINDOWS AND DOOR, REPLACE

12/21/2021 Window World of Central Florida Inc 602 CITRUS CT

MB21_640 DUCTWORK, REPLACE

12/15/2021 Extreme Air & Electric Inc. 517 AVENUE A

117



MB21_642 RE ROOF, FLAT

12/15/2021 Property Renovations and Construction LLC 210 THIRD

MB21_644 RE ROOF AND SOLAR FAN, INSTALL

12/22/2021 Hippo Roofing 414 SECOND AVE

MB21_646 NEW HOME

12/18/2021 M.E. Miller General Contractor, LLC 402 RIVER VIEW LN

MB21_651 PAVERS

12/21/2021 Complete Landscapes by Chris 303 HIBISCUS TRL

MB21_653 GARAGE DOOR, REPLACE

12/22/2021 PRECISION DOOR SERVICES OF BREVARD 1706 ATLANTIC ST  3A

MB21_656 INTERIOR DEMOLITION

12/28/2021 GELBERT ENTERPRISES INC. 1905 ATLANTIC ST  325

MB21_658 RE ROOF W/FLAT

12/28/2021 G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION INC 502 ATLANTIC ST

MB21_661 MECHANICAL, HVAC

12/30/2021 CAMPBELL'S COOLING AND HEATING INC 419 OCEAN AVE  201

MB21_662 HVAC, REPLACE 2 UNITS

12/30/2021 CCS SERVICES LLC 302 OCEAN AVE

118



Public Works Activities 

December 2021 

Significant time Christmas Decorations 

Swale Cherry  

Replaced 5 ft. section of sidewalk 800 block Riverside 

Placed plexiglass cover over painting at Pier 

Moved Finance Office  

Placed shell rock at area Town Sign at Exxon and repaired irrigation system 

Repaired irrigation pump at Ryckman 

Located wi fi antennae’s for computer experts 

Ran temporary irrigation line to water new plants on dune Ocean Park 

Tennis court lights installed by contractor 

Replaced doors on our dumpsters  

Trimmed area 3rd and pine  

Worked on Christmas tree electrical 

Stop signs installed with crossbars per Commission direction 

Replaced card reader on Ryckman Parking kioski 

Worked with Sun Plumbing replaced section of sewer line causing back up in Ryckman bathroom 

Installed swing at 5th ave river park 

Storage yard completely cleaned and road base put down 

Installed fire ring Ocean Park 

Street sweeping Pine and Riverview 

Pot hole repair 

Cleared areas around oaks on Oak (26) 

 

119



CODE ENFORCEMENT MONTHLY REPORT: December 2021
NEW CASES FOR THE MONTH Of  December
CASE NUMBER   DATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION DATE CLOSED ACTIVEDATE ADDRESS CODE VIOLATION DATE CLOSED STATUS

2021-CE-158 12/1/2021 210 Cherry Drive Tree cuttings in street 12/2/2021 Left door tag,copy of code and my card Cuttings Removed 12/2/21 Case Closed

2021-CE-159 12/1/2021 401 Andrews Drive Trailers in Drive 12/22/2021 Talked to owner 12/12/21 She said it would bemmoved nexd week Removed Case Closed

2021-CE-160 12/9/2021 445 River View LaneTrailer and boat in drive 12/23/2021 Trailer and boat in drive Left door tag asked them to call me 12/23/21 boat gone Case closed

2021-CE-161 12/9/2021 411 Ancher Key Trailer in Drive 12/20/2021 Talked to owner will move this week 12/20/21 Trailer moved Case Cl;osed

2021-CE-162 12/15/2021 411 Atlantic Street trees overgrown on street 12/27/2021 Left door tag and Copy of code and my business card 12/27/2021 Trees Trimmed Case Closed

2021-CE-163          12/16/2021 504 Avenue A Boat and trailer in drive 12/19/2021 Talked to owner, she would fix by next week 12/19/21 Boat moved to sid e of home Case closed

2021-CE-164 12/20/2021 802 Pine St. Trees on Corner 12/28/2021 Left door tag with copy of cod and my business card 12/23/21 Bushes trimmed Case closed

2021-CE-165 12/20/2021 425 Avenue A Pine trees in Right of Way X Talked to Daughter told her violation she would tell her dad

2021-CE-166 12/20/2021 1003 Pine St Tree obstructing View of traffic 12/22/2021 Knocked on door, No answer Left door tag and business card,12/22/21 Bushes trimmed. Case closed

2021-CE-169 12/1/2021 201 Third Avenue Boat not behind Gate X Owner has  gate on Order

2021-CE-167 12/20/2021 450 Sands Key Tree cuttings in street 12/23/2021 Knocked on door no answer left door tag and copy of card 12/23/21 Cuttings gone Case closed

2021-CE-168 12/25/2021 502 Colony St. Commercial trailer on St. X Getting ready to trim the sea grapes.

OPEN/ACTIVE CASES FROM PRIOR MONTHS
CASE NUMBER   DATE  ADDRESS  CODE VIOLATION  DATE CLOSED  ACTIVEDATE  ADDRESS VIOLATION ACTION

2021-CE-125 9/16/2021 400 Avenue B Failed Short term ins. X Met With Fire Insp. Waiting on his report Owen will not use until corrected NOV issued

2020-CE-198 11/20/2020 303 Beau Jean Shed without permit X Waiting on Code Enforcement Special Majistrate

1021-CE-063 6/9/2021 409 Third Avenue Yard overgrown X Waiting on Code Enforcement Special Majistrate

PRIOR CASES CLOSED IN December
2021-CE-166 12/20/2021 1003 Pine St Tree obstructing View of traffic 12/22/2021 Knocked on door, No answer Left door tag and business card,12/22/21 Bushes trimmed. Case closed

2021-CE-167 12/20/2021 450 Sands Key Tree cuttings in street 12/23/2021 Knocked on door no answer left door tag and copy of card 12/23/21 Cuttings gone Case closed
2021-CE-158 12/1/2021 210 Cherry Drive Tree cuttings in street 12/2/2021 Left door tag,copy of code and my card 12/2/21 Cuttings gone Case Closed

2021-CE-159 12/1/2021 401 Andrews Drive Trailers in Drive 12/22/2021 Talked to owner 12/12/21 She said it would bemmoved nexd week Removed Case Closed

2021-CE-160 12/9/2021 445 River View LaneTrailer and boat in drive 12/23/2021 Trailer and boat in drive Left door tag asked them to call me 12/23/21 boat gone Case closed

2021-CE-161 12/9/2021 411 Ancher Key Trailer in Drive 12/20/2021 Talked to owner will move this week 12/20/21 Trailer moved Case Cl;osed

2021-CE-162 12/15/2021 411 Atlantic Street trees overgrown on street 12/27/2021 Left door tag and Copy of code and my business card 12/27/2021 Trees Trimmed Case Closed
2021-CE-163          12/16/2021 504 Avenue A Boat and trailer in drive 12/19/2021 Talked to owner, she would fix by next week 12/19/21 Boat moved to sid e of home Case closed

120



2021-CE-155 11/21/2021 422 Third Avenus Corner blocked by Bush. 12/15/2021 Knocked on door Left Tag, Card and copy of Code NOV issued 11/29.2021. 12/15/21 land. Trimmed Csae closed

2021-CE-085 6/27/2021 411 Oak Street Short term Rental 12/12/2021 Sent violation Letter need to checkCalled 10/04/21 Left message 

2021-CE-155 5/19/2021 602 Shannon AvenueShort term Rental 12/15/2021 Issued NOV 05/20

2021-CE-164 12/20/2021 802 Pine Street Bushes on st. Overgrown 12/23/2021 Bushes trimmed  Case closed

NUMBER OF CASES OPEN THIS MONTH 12

NUMBER OF CASES CLOSED THIS MONTH 12

NUMBER OF CASES OPEN AND CLOSED SAME MONTH 9

TOTAL NUMBER OF CASES STILL OPEN 6

NUMBER OF CASES THAT WENT TO Hearing 1

PREPARED BY Robert Schaefer, CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER, 

121



Left door tag,copy of code and my card Cuttings Removed 12/2/21 Case Closed

Talked to owner 12/12/21 She said it would bemmoved nexd week Removed Case Closed

Trailer and boat in drive Left door tag asked them to call me 12/23/21 boat gone Case closed

Talked to owner will move this week 12/20/21 Trailer moved Case Cl;osed

Left door tag and Copy of code and my business card 12/27/2021 Trees Trimmed Case Closed

Talked to owner, she would fix by next week 12/19/21 Boat moved to sid e of home Case closed

Left door tag with copy of cod and my business card 12/23/21 Bushes trimmed Case closed

Talked to Daughter told her violation she would tell her dad

Knocked on door, No answer Left door tag and business card,12/22/21 Bushes trimmed. Case closed

Owner has  gate on Order

Knocked on door no answer left door tag and copy of card 12/23/21 Cuttings gone Case closed

Getting ready to trim the sea grapes.

Met With Fire Insp. Waiting on his report Owen will not use until corrected NOV issued

Waiting on Code Enforcement Special Majistrate

Waiting on Code Enforcement Special Majistrate

Knocked on door, No answer Left door tag and business card,12/22/21 Bushes trimmed. Case closed

Knocked on door no answer left door tag and copy of card 12/23/21 Cuttings gone Case closed
Left door tag,copy of code and my card 12/2/21 Cuttings gone Case Closed

Talked to owner 12/12/21 She said it would bemmoved nexd week Removed Case Closed

Trailer and boat in drive Left door tag asked them to call me 12/23/21 boat gone Case closed

Talked to owner will move this week 12/20/21 Trailer moved Case Cl;osed

Left door tag and Copy of code and my business card 12/27/2021 Trees Trimmed Case Closed
Talked to owner, she would fix by next week 12/19/21 Boat moved to sid e of home Case closed

122



Knocked on door Left Tag, Card and copy of Code NOV issued 11/29.2021. 12/15/21 land. Trimmed Csae closed

Called 10/04/21 Left message Application Complete Case Closed 12/12/2021

 Aplication Filed Case Closed

Bushes trimmed  Case closed

123



In December, we had a total of 3 arrests ranging from Driving Under the Influence, Criminal Mischief, Driving 

While License Suspended, and Battery.  

House checks/residential and business checks are continued daily. The officers and I continue to be proactive 

as they conducted several "directed traffic enforcement details" throughout the town. Our radar trailers are also 

placed in various locations throughout the city to assist in deterring speeders. 

We had 6 animal complaints/calls this month consisting of; 

3 Dogs on the beach 

2 Barking Dogs 

1 Found Dog 

One of our areas of high volume calls consists of Injured/Ill persons. These calls are unpredictable, and each of 

the officers is First Responder/CPR/AED certified and is first on the scene to provide medical treatment as 

necessary.  

All reports and calls for service are checked each day by either myself or a supervisor. Depending on the type 

of crime we have, procedures are in place to take the appropriate action to resolve the issue.    

Community Event 

MBVFD Children's Christmas Parade was successful. Thank you to all the volunteers! 

PD News 

We are in the process of picking a movie and a date TBD  

 SRO Dovale meets with the Threat Assessment Team regarding pre-post-action plans on fire drills and various 

scenarios.  

Melbourne Beach Police Department 
Monthly Report 
December 2021 

124



We hope everyone had a wonderful Christmas and look forward to a safe and healthy 2022.  

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Please see the attachments:  

• Sergeant's monthly reports

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

125



   
 
 

Monthly Report December 2021 
 

 
 

• 12/02: Vehicle Burglaries on South Palm Avenue, Hibiscus Trail, Flamingo Lane, and 
Riverside Drive. Cash was stolen from vehicles. These cases are still under investigation. 

• 12/04: Fraud 1900 block Cedar Lane. The male subject sent a check, and an unknown 
subject received it and stole money from the fraudulent use of the check. This case is under 
investigation.  

• 12/04: Traffic Arrest at Oak Street and Atlantic Street. A traffic stop was conducted on a 
male subject for an expired temp tag. The male subject was issued a court date for driving 
while license suspended and failure to register motor vehicle. 

• 12/10: Traffic Crash at Oak Street and Sunset Blvd (2) vehicles involved. Minor damage to 
both vehicles. No injuries were reported on scene, and both vehicles were removed by the 
drivers. 

• 12/12: Traffic Crash at Second Avenue and Atlantic Street (2) vehicles involved. Both 
vehicles had minor damage and were removed by their drivers. 

• 12/19: Grand Theft in the 300 block of Ocean Avenue. An unknown male stole a bicycle 
from the bicycle rack. This case is still under investigation. 

• 12/26: Felony Violation of Probation arrest in the 1000 block of Atlantic Street. When the 
male subject was placed in the booking cell, he caused damage to the cell. The male 
subject was also charged with criminal mischief and resisting officers.  

• 12/27: Suicide in the 500 block of Magnolia Avenue of a male. Brevard County Sheriff’s 
Office is investigating the incident.  

• 12/27: Domestic Verbal in the 200 block of Cherry Drive. Two females were verbally 
arguing, with no physical contact between the parties.  

• 12/28: Trespass Warning issued in the 900 block of Ocean Avenue. The male subject 
caused a disturbance in a local business, and an employee had him trespassed.      

 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Hinchman 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

126



   
 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: LT. Smith 
 
FROM: Sgt. Kino 
 
RE: December Monthly Call Report 
 
DATE: 01/01/2022   

 
12/1- Criminal Mischief in the 500 block of Colony St.  W/M questioned and a Capias Request 
sent to SAO. 
 
12/1- Baker Act in the 2000 block of Oak St.  W/F was transported to the hospital by BCFR then 
transferred to COC. 
 
12/1- Baker Act in the 500 block of Ocean Ave.  W/M advised he took an unknown amount of 
pills to harm himself. 
 
12/7- DUI arrest in the 1300 block of S Miramar Ave in Indialantic.  The vehicle was speeding 
and then finally stopped in that area.  W/M was arrested for DUI. 
 
12/16- Overdose in the 400 block of Atlantic St.  W/M was transported to HRMC for further 
treatment. 
 
12/16- Recovered stolen gun from out of state, in the area of South Palm and Poinsettia.  
Recovered on a traffic stop, no arrest made. 
 
12/17- Traffic arrest in the area of Oak St. and Beau Jean Ave.  W/M arrested for driving while 
license suspended with knowledge. 
 
12/18- Battery in the area of South Palm Ave. and Magnolia Ave.  W/M arrested. 
 
 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Steven Kino 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

127



12/30- Domestic disturbance in the 500 block of Poinsettia Rd.  Both parties separated for the 
remainder of the evening. A Capias Request was completed and sent to SAO. 

12/30- Domestic verbal in the 500 block of Magnolia Ave.  Parties on scene advised that it was 
only verbal.   

128



DEC NOV OCT SEPT AUG JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Total Calls for Service 924 966 1236 1157 1359 1421 1113 912 788 863 770 815 12324
Total Felonies 9 0 7 2 4 3 3 9 2 9 9 2 59
Total Misdemeanors 14 7 21 6 17 13 8 6 9 11 8 8 128
Total Capias Requests 1 0 2 0 1 0 1 2 0 0 1 2 10
Total Traffic Arrests 2 2 1 4 4 3 1 0 2 1 0 0 20
Total Other Arrests 3 1 5 0 5 6 5 1 3 2 5 3 39

911 Investigation 26 18 26 27 18 25 20 26 19 31 18 20 274
Alarm Business 5 5 4 7 3 5 3 2 1 4 1 4 44
Alarm Residence 3 3 4 5 6 2 4 3 0 1 5 6 42
Alarm Vehicle 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Animal Complaint 6 2 10 3 6 5 2 10 14 8 22 8 96
AOA Fire 3 7 1 4 3 2 5 1 4 6 3 4 43
AOA LEO 20 17 24 19 21 16 20 16 16 22 19 18 228
Assist Citizen 5 10 6 10 3 7 8 9 12 7 3 4 84
Assist DCF 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 7
Assist Motorist 0 1 1 0 2 2 2 1 2 4 2 2 19
Attempt To Contact 0 1 6 7 1 5 4 2 1 3 5 0 35
Baker Act 2 0 0 2 2 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 10
Battery 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 1 1 9
Burglary - Residence 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Burglary - Vehicle 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 4
Child Abuse 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Civil Matter 2 1 4 2 2 1 4 2 2 3 3 3 29
Crash 2 3 5 9 2 4 7 9 9 2 4 3 59
Criminal Mischief 1 3 3 1 1 2 2 3 1 0 0 2 19
Death Investigation 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 1 1 7
Disturbance Domestic 3 1 2 1 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 24
Disturbance Domestic Battery 1 0 1 0 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 11
Disturbance 2 1 3 0 0 1 0 3 1 1 0 3 15
Disturbance Noise 2 0 5 3 1 6 5 3 3 0 1 5 34
Disturbance Verbal 0 0 1 0 3 0 0 0 0 4 1 1 10
Drowning 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Fraud / Forgery 1 0 2 0 0 1 0 2 0 2 1 0 9
Harassment 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 2

Melbourne Beach Police Department129



DEC NOV OCT SEPT AUG JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
House Checks 78 173 237 257 309 330 229 77 40 74 44 68 1916
Illegal Parking 31 26 43 81 58 59 48 61 39 18 24 18 506
Information 11 9 10 13 5 15 15 15 6 14 19 8 140
Injured/Ill Person 17 12 14 14 22 21 23 17 13 19 16 11 199
Intoxicated Driver 1 0 1 0 0 3 2 0 2 0 4 1 14
Intoxicated Person 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
Investigation 2 0 2 1 0 2 3 3 8 6 0 0 27
Marchman Act 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 1 4
Missing Person 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 1 3
Narcotics 0 0 0 0 3 2 2 1 0 1 0 2 11
Open Door 2 2 3 2 3 3 3 4 3 1 0 0 26
Overdose 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 5
Parking Citations 36 40 59 136 47 79 50 78 85 21 26 8 665
Patrol Area 88 99 117 128 128 141 123 86 97 94 68 117 1286
Patrol Area Business 144 172 186 167 176 179 170 95 92 119 115 165 1780
Patrol Area Residential 278 312 348 332 423 456 316 218 153 149 148 156 3289
Patrol Area School 45 49 59 57 47 17 39 49 41 33 20 17 473
Private Investigator 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 3
Property Confiscated 0 0 1 1 2 1 0 4 0 1 1 1 12
Property Found 4 2 3 1 2 3 3 2 5 2 1 1 29
Property Lost 0 1 0 1 0 1 4 0 0 1 0 1 9
Reckless Driving 13 4 10 14 7 7 4 7 4 8 3 4 85
Search 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 3 0 0 0 5
Soliciting 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Special Detail 2 0 2 1 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 8
Special Unit  Response ATV 2 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 3 1 7
Special Unit Response Drone 1 0 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 0 1 0 6
Standby-Keep the Peace 2 2 2 2 1 0 1 0 2 0 0 1 13
Suicide 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Suicide Threat/Attempt 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 3
Suspicious Incident 8 7 4 7 5 7 5 6 10 5 10 5 79
Suspicious Person 4 7 18 5 8 7 6 8 3 6 4 3 79
Suspicious Vehicle 17 13 28 17 11 10 8 5 5 15 6 12 147
Theft 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 3 1 0 8
Traffic Citations 32 26 43 54 62 48 39 18 24 20 29 25 420

Melbourne Beach Police Department130



DEC NOV OCT SEPT AUG JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Traffic Complaint 0 1 4 3 3 0 1 4 3 1 2 1 23
Traffic Enforcement 70 94 145 114 217 205 130 132 105 107 114 74 1507
Traffic Obstruction 2 1 1 3 1 2 2 2 1 1 0 0 16
Traffic Stop 88 120 173 156 190 196 168 102 92 156 126 135 1702
Trespassing 2 0 1 1 2 0 3 2 0 1 1 0 13
Vehicle Abondoned 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
Vehicle Inspection 0 0 3 1 1 2 1 0 2 1 1 1 13
Vehicle Repo / Tow 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 4
Vehicle Stolen 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2
Violation of Probation 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Wanted Person 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 9 0 1 13

Vehicle Mileage DEC NOV OCT SEPT AUG JULY JUNE MAY APR MAR FEB JAN YTD
Car 360 468 537 878 1005 1922 994 566 693 631 751 21199 580 30224
Car 361 877 897 1085 761 808 1014 989 897 941 1053 42651 1109 53082
Car 363 1013 760 1192 1097 1198 1048 1010 1274 969 1670 1057 1078 13366
Car 364 167 188 120 100 235 506 312 505 411 690 17189 219 20642
Car 366 1216 662 759 778 712 322 459 586 890 543 15047 462 22436
Car 367 1018 689 797 647 791 1003 983 221 0 0 0 0 6149
ATV 1 19 5 9 8 0 26 0 10 161 0 0 0 238
ATV 2 0 11 0 18 15 10 34 0 119 0 0 0 207

Melbourne Beach Police Department131



Melbourne Beach 

Vol. Fire Department 
507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

(321)724-1736 
FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org 

 
 

 

FIRE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT 

December 2021 
 

 

 
Incident Response 

For the month of December 2021, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 

responded to 12 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 

personnel per paged out call for the month was 12.    

Breakdown: 

 3 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (paged out) 

 7 Public Service/Assist 

 2 EMS Assists 

 

Notable Incidents 

 None 

 

 

Department Membership 

 Certified Firefighters: 20 

 Support Services Personnel: 6 

 Administrative Personnel: 2 

 Probationary Personnel: 1 

 

 

132

mailto:FireChief@MelbourneBeachFL.org


 

Notable Events 

 

For his 35+ years of dedicated volunteer service, Safety Chief Dave Micka was 

announced as the 2021 Space Coast Volunteer Firefighter of the Year by the Space 

Coast Fire Chiefs Association.  The Award will be presented at the 2022 SCFCA Annual 

Meeting which will be held on Friday, January 28th at the Cocoa Civic Center starting at 

9am.  Congrats Safety Chief Micka! 

 

Fire Department staff & volunteers assisted the Town of Melbourne Beach with the 

annual Tree Lighting event and the Firefighters Association with the Christmas Parade 

and Santa Run events. 

Together with input from the other Town Departments, the Fire Department has 

established a comprehensive beach fire program for the newly passed beach fire 

ordinance.  The beach fire program is active as of January 1st 2022 with 1 fire ring 

location at Ocean Park.  2 additional fire rings are scheduled for installation at Ocean 

Park (dependent on supplies availability). 

Annual hose testing was completed in December.  150ft of 1.75” hose and 50ft of 5” 

hose failed testing and was removed from service. 

 

 

 

 

Grant Updates 

The Fire Department has completed and submitted the FY21 FEMA Assistance to 

Firefighters Grant to assist in offsetting the cost of purchasing new radios. 

 

133



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 1/13/2022 4:03:25 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2021-138 12/02/2021 2100 Oak ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 12/02/2021 12:52 12/02/2021 13:47

2021-139 12/03/2021 511 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 12/03/2021 18:05 12/03/2021 20:47

2021-140 12/10/2021 Intersection  Avenue A  / Atlantic, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Good intent call, other 12/10/2021 11:47 12/10/2021 12:01

2021-141 12/14/2021 308 Orange ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Service Call, other 12/14/2021 09:28 12/14/2021 10:25

2021-142 12/16/2021 312 2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Service Call, other 12/16/2021 08:47 12/16/2021 09:16

2021-143 12/16/2021 411 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 12/16/2021 12:43 12/16/2021 12:54

2021-144 12/18/2021 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 12/18/2021 08:25 12/18/2021 10:57

2021-145 12/22/2021 1303 Orange ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 12/22/2021 13:47 12/22/2021 13:51

2021-146 12/24/2021 500 1st AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 12/24/2021 16:18 12/24/2021 16:42

2021-147 12/24/2021 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 12/24/2021 17:38 12/24/2021 22:02

2021-148 12/24/2021 607 Citrus CT , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 12/24/2021 18:27 12/24/2021 18:36

2021-149 12/29/2021 205 Ballyshaon ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 329513295 Dispatched & cancelled en route 12/29/2021 14:38 12/29/2021 14:48

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 12/01/2021 | End Date: 12/31/2021

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

134



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 1/13/2022 4:09:40 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2021-138 12/2/2021 12:52:31 553 - Public service 19112 1 0 1

2021-139 12/3/2021 18:05:24 553 - Public service 19112 2 11 13

2021-140 12/10/2021 11:47:35 600 - Good intent call, other 19112 1 1 2

2021-141 12/14/2021 09:28:06 500 - Service Call, other 19112 1 0 1

2021-142 12/16/2021 08:47:30 500 - Service Call, other 19112 1 0 1

2021-143 12/16/2021 12:43:23 311 - Medical assist, assist EMS crew 19112 1 0 1

2021-144 12/18/2021 08:25:00 553 - Public service 19112 11 9 20

2021-145 12/22/2021 13:47:17 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 2 0 2

2021-146 12/24/2021 16:18:33 412 - Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 19112 6 10 16

2021-147 12/24/2021 17:38:55 553 - Public service 19112 14 0 14

2021-148 12/24/2021 18:27:03 746 - Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 19112 4 10 14

2021-149 12/29/2021 14:38:12 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 1 6 7

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 12 AVERAGES: 3.8 3.9 7.7

Start Date: 12/01/2021 | End Date: 12/31/2021

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                   3.7              8.7            12.3
             (Paged out calls only)

**
**

**

135



Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 
From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 
Date: January 14, 2022 
Re: December 2021   

We are in the third month of our fiscal year 2022. The target expenditure rate for December is 25%. All departments 
are managing their expenditures even though several lines are over the targeted expenditure rate. All budget items 
highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated spending of that budget line. Some budget 
lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are paid on a 
monthly basis. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 28.6%. The Departmental expenditure rate 
breakdown is as follows:   
 

Legislative:   24.9% 
  Executive:                19.2% 
  Finance:   21.3%  
  Legal:                 16.0% 
  Comp & Plan:     09.4% 
  General Services:  26.8% 
  Law Enforcement:  24.3% 
  Fire:    23.5% 
  Code:    24.9% 
  Public Works:     22.4% 
  Parks:    64.0% 
   
 
Discussion Items:  
 
The Town received Parking Revenue for December in the amount of $11,748.61. 
We are working on the application for reimbursement of funding from FEMA for COVID related purchases that were 
not covered under the CARES Act.     
Completed the annual end of year close in Fund Balance.  
W2’s processed for staff. 
Spent two days in house with BS&A in preparation of the computer software conversion. 
 
  
 
 

136



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
Fund:  125 - Building Dept
Target Rate: 25%

Expenditures Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  24  Protective Inspections
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 75,116.00 75,116.00 17,465.21 57,650.79 23.3
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 817.52 817.52 101.35 716.17 12.4
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 5,746.00 5,746.00 1,254.05 4,491.95 21.8
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 7,512.00 7,512.00 1,684.30 5,827.70 22.4
500.23.01  Health Insurance 18,144.00 18,144.00 6,077.48 12,066.52 33.5
500.23.02  Life Insurance 136.00 136.00 45.04 90.96 33.1
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 240.00 240.00 20.25 219.75 8.4
520.31.00  Professional Services 55,703.54 55,703.54 9,758.00 45,945.54 17.5
520.51.00  Office Supplies 266.00 266.00 162.39 103.61 61.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 46.91 46.91 0.00 46.91 0.0
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 95.00 95.00 0.00 95.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 80.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 0.0

22.3

137



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
Fund:  001 - General Fund
Target Rate: 25%

Expenditures Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud

Dept:  11  Legislative
500.11.00  Executive Salaries 16,200.00 16,200.00 3,791.64 12,408.36 23.4
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 60,705.00 60,705.00 14,037.54 46,667.46 23.1
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,644.00 4,644.00 1,357.29 3,286.71 29.2
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,568.00 6,568.00 1,410.66 5,157.34 21.5
500.23.01  Health Insurance 8,568.00 8,568.00 2,855.04 5,712.96 33.3
500.23.02  Life Insurance 70.00 70.00 22.52 47.48 32.2
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 194.00 194.00 16.98 177.02 8.8
510.31.00  Professional Services 250.00 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.0
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 3,640.00 3,640.00 35.00 3,605.00 1.0
510.40.10  Travel & Meetings - Staff 2,788.00 2,788.00 0.00 2,788.00 0.0
510.47.00  Printing 5,015.00 5,015.00 213.60 4,801.40 4.3
510.47.20  Public Records Printing 0.00 0.00 34.65 -34.65 0.0
510.48.00  Promotional Activities 600.00 600.00 60.98 539.02 10.2
510.48.40  Legal Notices 10,000.00 10,000.00 3,312.18 6,687.82 33.1
510.49.50  Election Expense 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 875.00 875.00 510.00 365.00 58.3
510.54.10  Training & Schools 4,410.00 4,410.00 0.00 4,410.00 0.0
510.64.00  Machinery & Equipment 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 7,421.00 7,421.00 6,354.82 1,066.18 85.6

24.9

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  12  Executive
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 121,960.00 121,960.00 23,799.08 98,160.92 19.5
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 9,330.00 9,330.00 2,052.97 7,277.03 22.0
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 10,820.00 10,820.00 2,360.35 8,459.65 21.8
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 2,376.00 2,376.00 0.00 2,376.00 0.0
500.23.01  Health Insurance 25,697.00 25,697.00 4,020.88 21,676.12 15.6
500.23.02  Life Insurance 735.00 735.00 227.00 508.00 30.9
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 390.00 390.00 27.63 362.37 7.1
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 1,320.00 1,320.00 246.14 1,073.86 18.6
510.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,400.00 2,400.00 600.00 1,800.00 25.0
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 895.00 895.00 546.00 349.00 61.0
510.54.10  Training & Schools 450.00 450.00 0.00 450.00 0.0

19.2

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  13  Finance
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 61,234.00 61,234.00 14,151.01 47,082.99 23.1
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 4,684.00 4,684.00 1,052.46 3,631.54 22.5
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 6,626.00 6,626.00 1,422.94 5,203.06 21.5
500.23.01  Health Insurance 7,835.00 7,835.00 2,607.96 5,227.04 33.3
500.23.02  Life Insurance 70.00 70.00 22.52 47.48 32.2
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 196.00 196.00 17.09 178.91 8.7
510.31.00  Professional Services 7,000.00 7,000.00 5,633.53 1,366.47 80.5
510.32.00  Auditing Services 23,000.00 23,000.00 0.00 23,000.00 0.0
510.32.90  Banking Fees 4,700.00 4,700.00 1,013.40 3,686.60 21.6
510.32.95  IPS BANKING FEE 3,708.00 3,708.00 0.00 3,708.00 0.0
510.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,100.00 2,100.00 0.00 2,100.00 0.0
510.41.15  IPS Communication Fee 660.00 660.00 184.18 475.82 27.9
510.47.00  Printing 180.00 180.00 130.98 49.02 72.8
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 60.00 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.0
510.54.10  Training & Schools 800.00 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.0
764.10.00  Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0

21.3

138



Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  14  Legal Counsel
510.31.00  Professional Services 96,000.00 96,000.00 15,735.50 80,264.50 16.4
510.31.01  Code Enforcement Attorney 2,250.00 2,250.00 0.00 2,250.00 0.0

16.0

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  15  Comprehensive Planning
510.31.00  Professional Services 20,000.00 20,000.00 1,875.00 18,125.00 9.4

9.4

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  19  General Services
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,520.00 2,520.00 2,520.00 0.00 100.0
510.31.00  Professional Services 4,020.00 4,020.00 930.00 3,090.00 23.1
510.31.11  Security 2,300.00 2,300.00 0.00 2,300.00 0.0
510.34.10  Janitorial Services 15,108.00 15,108.00 3,777.00 11,331.00 25.0
510.35.00  Pre-Employment Exp 135.00 135.00 269.00 -134.00 199.3
510.41.00  Telephone 10,992.00 10,992.00 2,362.02 8,629.98 21.5
510.41.10  Communication Services 43,608.00 43,608.00 12,856.37 30,751.63 29.5
510.43.00  Street Lights 46,000.00 46,000.00 7,613.95 38,386.05 16.6
510.43.10  Electricity 28,704.00 28,704.00 4,788.14 23,915.86 16.7
510.43.20  Water & Sewer 1,560.00 1,560.00 510.88 1,049.12 32.7
510.43.50  Waste Tax Service 2,807.00 2,807.00 2,185.75 621.25 77.9
510.45.00  General Liability Insurance 68,412.00 68,412.00 36,470.00 31,942.00 53.3
510.45.01  Flood Insurance 3,751.00 3,751.00 0.00 3,751.00 0.0
510.45.02  Property Insurance 50,920.00 50,920.00 29,483.50 21,436.50 57.9
510.45.03  Auto Insurance 7,788.00 7,788.00 3,763.00 4,025.00 48.3
510.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 4,232.00 4,232.00 634.56 3,597.44 15.0
510.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 14,500.00 14,500.00 0.00 14,500.00 0.0
510.46.36  Pest Control 3,000.00 3,000.00 706.74 2,293.26 23.6
510.46.41  Mowing Contract 22,410.00 22,410.00 7,194.00 15,216.00 32.1
510.47.00  Printing 600.00 600.00 127.43 472.57 21.2
510.49.48  Env. Boards Expense 3,420.00 3,420.00 784.78 2,635.22 22.9
510.49.98  Contingency 30,000.00 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.0
510.49.99  Miscellaneous 300.00 300.00 238.94 61.06 79.6
510.51.00  Office Supplies 9,000.00 9,000.00 2,476.44 6,523.56 27.5
510.51.10  Postage 1,200.00 1,200.00 403.85 796.15 33.7
510.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 475.96 2,524.04 15.9
510.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 320.00 320.00 0.00 320.00 0.0
510.64.01  Capital Outlay 174,261.00 174,261.00 31,575.00 142,686.00 18.1
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 17,521.00 17,521.00 1,536.33 15,984.67 8.8

26.8

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  21  Law Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 570,664.00 632,664.00 135,686.71 496,977.29 21.4
500.12.50  Holiday Pay 19,000.00 19,000.00 19,253.06 -253.06 101.3
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 30,300.00 30,300.00 2,758.21 27,541.79 9.1
500.14.16  Hurricane Pay 17,950.00 17,950.00 0.00 17,950.00 0.0
500.15.00  Education Incentive Pay 6,600.00 6,600.00 2,111.43 4,488.57 32.0
500.15.01  First Responder 7,920.00 7,920.00 1,776.43 6,143.57 22.4
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 50,856.00 50,856.00 11,942.55 38,913.45 23.5
500.22.02  Police Pension 232,807.00 232,807.00 52,000.00 180,807.00 22.3
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 3,813.00 3,813.00 818.94 2,994.06 21.5
500.23.01  Health Insurance 83,152.00 83,152.00 28,947.48 54,204.52 34.8
500.23.02  Life Insurance 2,500.00 2,500.00 878.10 1,621.90 35.1
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 14,438.00 14,438.00 12,611.00 1,827.00 87.3
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 2,127.00 2,127.00 196.26 1,930.74 9.2
520.31.00  Professional Services 725.00 725.00 150.00 575.00 20.7
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 17,785.00 17,785.00 17,785.00 0.00 100.0

139



520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 2,240.00 2,240.00 496.55 1,743.45 22.2
520.41.10  Communication Services 4,488.00 4,488.00 500.11 3,987.89 11.1
520.46.10  Office Equipment Maintenance 5,500.00 5,500.00 495.36 5,004.64 9.0
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
520.46.16  Radar Calibration 700.00 700.00 100.00 600.00 14.3
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 12,000.00 12,000.00 3,080.44 8,919.56 25.7
520.48.00  Promotional Activities 1,200.00 1,200.00 288.96 911.04 24.1
520.48.50  Crime Prevention 1,100.00 1,100.00 641.81 458.19 58.3
520.49.99  Miscellaneous 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 6,600.00 6,600.00 988.50 5,611.50 15.0
520.52.05  Protective Gear 8,328.00 8,328.00 147.42 8,180.58 1.8
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 13,000.00 13,000.00 3,310.19 9,689.81 25.5
520.52.70  Medical 600.00 600.00 0.00 600.00 0.0
520.52.90  Operating Supplies 3,720.00 3,720.00 489.69 3,230.31 13.2
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 1,955.00 1,955.00 270.00 1,685.00 13.8
520.54.10  Training & Schools 5,400.00 5,400.00 632.00 4,768.00 11.7
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 58,795.00 58,795.00 2,823.00 55,972.00 4.8
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 14,738.00 14,738.00 5,373.30 9,364.70 36.5

24.3

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  22  Fire Control
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 85,610.00 85,610.00 10,089.69 75,520.31 11.8
500.14.50  Stipend Payroll 55,040.00 55,040.00 18,413.60 36,626.40 33.5
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 7,643.00 7,643.00 2,405.34 5,237.66 31.5
500.22.01  Retirement - ICMA 6,562.00 6,562.00 1,454.06 5,107.94 22.2
500.23.01  Health Insurance 4,968.00 4,968.00 1,655.64 3,312.36 33.3
500.23.02  Life Insurance 162.00 162.00 22.52 139.48 13.9
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 180.00 180.00 129.00 51.00 71.7
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 7,920.00 7,920.00 0.00 7,920.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 194.00 194.00 21.21 172.79 10.9
520.31.00  Professional Services 5,000.00 5,000.00 300.00 4,700.00 6.0
520.34.40  Dispatching Services 5,200.00 5,200.00 0.00 5,200.00 0.0
520.35.00  Pre-Employment Expense 1,225.00 1,225.00 28.00 1,197.00 2.3
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 500.00 500.00 307.92 192.08 61.6
520.41.10  Communication Services 1,260.00 1,260.00 330.75 929.25 26.3
520.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 8,665.00 8,665.00 3,331.19 5,333.81 38.4
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 22,950.00 40,950.00 11,690.84 29,259.16 28.5
520.46.30  Building Maintenance 1,000.00 1,000.00 63.79 936.21 6.4
520.48.55  Fire Prevention 4,536.00 4,536.00 1,476.29 3,059.71 32.5
520.51.00  Office Supplies 400.00 400.00 18.95 381.05 4.7
520.52.00  Uniforms 6,225.00 7,075.00 122.26 6,952.74 1.7
520.52.02  S.C.B.A. 1,850.00 1,850.00 626.48 1,223.52 33.9
520.52.05  Protective Gear 2,505.00 2,505.00 0.00 2,505.00 0.0
520.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
520.52.20  Tools & Hardware 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00 1,500.00 0.0
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 2,450.00 2,450.00 691.97 1,758.03 28.2
520.52.70  Medical 1,370.00 1,370.00 0.00 1,370.00 0.0
520.54.00  Dues & Subscriptions 265.00 265.00 160.00 105.00 60.4
520.54.10  Training & Schools 6,650.00 6,650.00 548.00 6,102.00 8.2
520.54.12  Training Materials 1,920.00 1,920.00 341.81 1,578.19 17.8
520.64.01  Capital Outlay 36,777.00 66,777.00 0.00 66,777.00 0.0
520.71.00  Principal Retired 29,734.00 29,734.00 31,324.47 -1,590.47 105.3
520.72.00  Interest Expense 3,267.00 3,267.00 1,675.85 1,591.15 51.3
543.00.00  Licenses & Fees 11,537.00 11,537.00 905.90 10,631.10 7.9

23.5

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  29  Code Enforcement
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 14,054.00 14,054.00 3,737.59 10,316.41 26.6
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 1,075.00 1,075.00 285.91 789.09 26.6
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 1,521.00 1,521.00 296.21 1,224.79 19.5

140



500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 45.00 45.00 3.55 41.45 7.9
520.40.00  Travel & Meetings 35.00 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.0
520.45.03  Auto Insurance 124.00 124.00 0.00 124.00 0.0
520.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
520.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0
520.51.00  Office Supplies 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
520.51.10  Postage 350.00 350.00 77.45 272.55 22.1
520.51.20  Recording Costs 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.0
520.52.00  Uniforms 75.00 75.00 130.25 -55.25 173.7
520.52.50  Gas & Oil 150.00 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.0
520.54.10  Training & Schools 75.00 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.0

24.9

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  41  Public Works
500.12.00  Regular Salaries 191,283.00 191,283.00 45,242.72 146,040.28 23.7
500.14.00  Salaries Overtime 4,000.00 4,000.00 768.27 3,231.73 19.2
500.21.00  FICA Taxes - Employer Portion 14,633.00 14,633.00 3,608.68 11,024.32 24.7
500.22.20  Retirement Town Employees 20,697.00 20,697.00 4,426.02 16,270.98 21.4
500.23.01  Health Insurance 21,840.00 21,840.00 5,435.62 16,404.38 24.9
500.23.02  Life Insurance 236.00 236.00 101.32 134.68 42.9
500.23.10  Statutory AD&D 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
500.24.00  Workers Compensation 2,750.00 2,750.00 0.00 2,750.00 0.0
500.25.00  Unemployment Compensation 612.00 612.00 55.53 556.47 9.1
530.31.00  Professional Services 25,000.00 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.0
530.34.91  Landscaping 6,500.00 6,500.00 4,522.72 1,977.28 69.6
530.40.00  Travel & Meetings 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
530.43.10  Electricity 0.00 0.00 1,416.55 -1,416.55 0.0
530.43.15  Electric -  Williams Building 5,000.00 5,000.00 1,198.01 3,801.99 24.0
530.43.50  Dump Service 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
530.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 3,000.00 3,000.00 1,135.82 1,864.18 37.9
530.46.15  Equipment Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 83.58 2,416.42 3.3
530.46.20  Vehicle Maintenance 9,500.00 9,500.00 519.86 8,980.14 5.5
530.46.30  Building Maintenance 6,500.00 6,500.00 1,426.49 5,073.51 21.9
530.46.31  Maintenance Old Town Hall 500.00 500.00 247.92 252.08 49.6
530.46.34  Maintenance Ryckman Park 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
530.46.35  Pier Maintenance 500.00 500.00 332.78 167.22 66.6
530.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 7,000.00 7,000.00 4,625.53 2,374.47 66.1
530.46.43  Tree Expense 3,500.00 3,500.00 1,075.00 2,425.00 30.7
530.52.00  Uniforms 2,100.00 2,100.00 293.84 1,806.16 14.0
530.52.05  Protective Gear 1,000.00 1,000.00 561.97 438.03 56.2
530.52.20  Tools & Hardware 4,000.00 4,000.00 2,473.15 1,526.85 61.8
530.52.25  TOOL RENTALS 3,500.00 3,500.00 2,144.11 1,355.89 61.3
530.52.50  Gas & Oil 3,600.00 3,600.00 668.83 2,931.17 18.6
530.53.10  Street Repair 7,500.00 7,500.00 2,375.30 5,124.70 31.7
530.53.15  Parking Lot Maintenance 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.0
530.53.20  Street Signs 10,000.00 10,000.00 3,715.63 6,284.37 37.2
530.54.10  Training & Schools 1,500.00 1,500.00 438.00 1,062.00 29.2
530.57.25  Welding 500.00 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.0
530.64.01  Capital Outlay 46,000.00 46,000.00 3,138.20 42,861.80 6.8

22.4

Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  72  Parks & Recreation
570.48.10  Founder's Day 6,000.00 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.0
570.48.50  Movies In The Park 1,800.00 1,800.00 47.94 1,752.06 2.7
570.48.52  Fourth of July 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
570.48.53  Christmas Decorations Park 1,500.00 1,733.00 1,322.85 410.15 76.3
570.48.60  Easter Egg Hunt 50.00 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.0
570.48.90  Recreation Programs 13,000.00 13,000.00 781.33 12,218.67 6.0
570.63.01  Tennis Court Expeditures 350.00 350.00 -14.00 364.00 -4.0

141



570.63.02  BBall & VBall Courts 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
570.63.05  Bocce Court Expenditures 200.00 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.0
570.64.01  Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 13,437.20 -13,437.20 0.0

64.0

Overall Target Rate: 28.6

142



For the Period:  10/1/2021 to 12/31/2021
Fund:  172 - OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND
Target Rate: 25%

Expenditures Original Bud. Amended Bud. YTD Actual UnencBal % Bud
Dept:  75  Town Parks
575.31.02  Lifeguard Contract 19,950.00 19,950.00 0.00 19,950.00 0.0
575.32.90  Banking Fees 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.0
575.34.10  Janitorial Cleaning 1,800.00 1,800.00 450.00 1,350.00 25.0
575.34.91  Landscaping 5,000.00 5,000.00 120.00 4,880.00 2.4
575.41.10  IPS Communications Fee 1,200.00 1,200.00 301.92 898.08 25.2
575.43.10  Electricity 1,584.00 1,584.00 280.04 1,303.96 17.7
575.43.20  Water & Sewer 1,500.00 1,500.00 194.26 1,305.74 13.0
575.43.50  Dump Service 660.00 660.00 0.00 660.00 0.0
575.46.12  Maintenance Supplies 1,000.00 1,000.00 6.63 993.37 0.7
575.46.30  Building Maintenance 2,200.00 2,200.00 0.00 2,200.00 0.0
575.46.31  Building Maint Restrooms 0.00 0.00 80.40 -80.40 0.0
575.46.40  Grounds Maintenance 1,800.00 1,800.00 4,058.74 -2,258.74 225.5
575.46.41  Mowing Contract 11,205.00 11,205.00 1,211.01 9,993.99 10.8
575.46.43  Tree Expense 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
575.52.10  Janitorial Supplies 350.00 350.00 5.30 344.70 1.5
575.53.15  Parking Lot Repairs 3,000.00 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.0
575.53.20  Signs 300.00 300.00 214.94 85.06 71.6
575.63.03  Volleyball Court 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.0
764.10.00  Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 120.00 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.0

12.4

143



ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Stop Sign Placement 06/16/2021 12/15/2021 Commission Town Manager 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Sign posted. Item Closed 

11/17/2021 Signs arrived – need to be placed – final update in Dec. 

10/20/2021 waiting for delivery – Nov. 2021 

8/18/2021 Need two additional signs for Ash and Orange 

7/21/2021 Town Manager Mascaro said she spoke with Chief and they are good to go forward. Commissioner 
Runte said that Magnolia and Palm should be included 

6/16/2021 Evaluate stop sign placement on Palm and Orange Avenue 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

Research Ocean Ave 
Beautification & Landscaping 
Parks 

2/17/2021 1/19/22 Mayor Hoover TM and PWD 

Date Directions/Notes 

12/15/2021 Update at January RTCM with Dix Height information. 

10/20/2021 Discussed during meeting in depth. Update at Nov. RTCM 

9/15/21 Currently working on RFP for gardening services and will present it at next RTCM as an agenda item. 
TM has not been able to make contact with Susan Hall  

8/18/2021 Added landscaping of Parks to Action item – and discussed RFP for landscaping services 

7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants. 

January 2022 ACTION ITEMS144



4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 
process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

12/2/2020 

Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business 
owners, starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and 
then meet again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement. 

12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option 
of wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers 
were also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

Research Crosswalk Art 8/18/2021 1/19/22 Mayor Hoover TM and PWD 

Date Directions/Notes 

11/17/21 Investigate permeable crosswalks 

10/20/21 Discuss Nov. RTCM 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research golf cart parking and 
bike rack installation 

12/15/2021 1/19/2022 Commission Town Manager/Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Added to Action Items 

145



ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research Pool Installation 
Process 

12/15/2021 1/19/2022 Commission Building/Public Works 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Added to Action Items 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

FDOT Traffic Stanchions 2/19/2020 06/15/2022 Commission Town Clerk 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 Update June 2022 RTCM 

11/17/21 Update Dec. RTCM 

8/18/2021 Update at October RTCM 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 PWD will ask FDOT if subcontractor (who is restriping cross walks) can also paint stanchions 

5/19/2021 PWD update at June RTCM 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Research Charging Stations 11/20/20 6/15/2022 Simmons Town Manager/PWD 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

12/15/2021 TM said new charging companies are coming out and installing their own stations with incentives and it 
may be a good idea to wait and see what they are. Rapid charge is 3-4 times the cost. 

10/20/2021 Commissioner Runte reached out to two vendors he works with update Nov. 2021 

146



9/15/2021 TM does not have an update. Commissioner Runte explained the companies are hard to reach or non-
responsive- still working on it. Update next month 

8/18/2021 Update at September RTCM 

7/21/2021 Update at August RTCM 

6/16/2021 Follow up on “Electrify” a company that leases charging stations 

5/19/2021 Update at June RTCM 

4/21/2021 Town Manager was given a list by Commissioner Runte to evaluate and update again at May RTCM. 

1/20/2021 Update again at April RTCM 

12/16/2020 Town Manager Mascaro said there is a lot to understand about these charging stations that effect cost 
and what’s included. Update again at January 2021 RTCM. 

11/18/2020 Commission advised to keep this item open until the stations are installed 

10/21/2020 Commission approved cost to replace breaker box and TM to get vendor contacts from Comm. Runte 

8/19/2020 PWS said breaker box must be replaced at cost of $3,000-$4,000.Commission asked TM to find 
install/generic cost for Sept RTCM. 

7/15/2020 

TM shared that the offer from Tesla no longer available, they cost $500. TM is looking at other options 
and will come back in August with information. Commission asked TM to look for similar offers and/or 
grants as Tesla was offering. 

6/17/2020 Electricians scheduled Wed. Parking spot for bikes and two for charging stations. Update July RTCM 

3/18/2020 Commission suggested TM get with Tesla to see what they may offer - including getting one at no cost. 
Tobe discussed again at May TCW. 

6/3/2020 Commission asked TM to contact Tesla to see what they have to offer. Update June RTCM. 

147


	Town Manager Report for January 2022
	ADPD9D3.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADP124B.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADPC3F4.tmp
	Permits Issued query

	ADPE756.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP107.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP34EA.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP6A25.tmp
	Sheet1

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADP3E18.tmp
	Vision Statement:
	The Purpose of This Project is To Sustain the Town’s      Character While Addressing its Needs.
	Thank you to Neal Tompkins for developing our Vision statement.

	Blank Page
	ADP5219.tmp
	Wyatt Hoover, MAYOR

	Blank Page



